#### View this email in your browser

September 2022

# **MEDIA** BUILLETIN



The Syrian Ministry of Health **declared a cholera outbreak** on 10 September, after 15 suspected cases were confirmed by laboratory testing. Government data indicates **39 cholera-related deaths** to date, with thousands of suspected cases reported across the country – although at the moment, cases appear to be concentrated in the north of the country and around the Euphrates River.

Exploring both historical and recent data collected by REACH in northeast Syria, our September Media Bulletin delves into the likely drivers of this outbreak: ongoing drought and ensuing water shortages, along with poor health and sanitation conditions in the country after 11 years of conflict.

## What is cholera?

According to the **World Health Organisation** (WHO), cholera is a disease caused by bacteria that can be found in faeces, and spreads through people consuming contaminated water or food. It causes severe watery diarrhoea and vomiting which lead to dehydration. If treated immediately, less than 1% of cases result in patients dying. However, if timely treatment is not available, cholera can lead to death within hours in 25 to 50% of cases.

P.S. Did you find this newsletter through social media? Subscribe below to stay in the loop for future editions.

Subscribe to the REACH media bulletin

**f** Share **y** Tweet **D** Forward

Water shortages are leading to reliance on unsafe sources, in turn driving up cholera risk.

A drought beginning in late 2020, long-term reduction in groundwater levels, reduced flow in the Euphrates River, and reduced functionality of Alouk water station have all contributed to Syria's water crisis. To cope with shortages, Syrian households have increasingly relied on unsafe sources, like water delivered by trucks from private vendors: in northeast Syria, 37% of communities assessed by REACH this month reported trucked water as their main drinking source. However, water quality is not monitored, and the source of privately trucked water is not always known – vendors may be using surface water, which is easily contaminated.

In Syria, one the primary sources of surface water, the Euphrates River, is known to have **raw sewage** discharged into it. The risk of cholera infection through consuming untreated water from the Euphrates is therefore very high and made worse by the current low water levels, which can lead to a higher concentration of bacteria. In fact, REACH data reveals a link between communities relying on water trucking and those reporting that water was perceived to be making people sick:

- 20% of assessed communities that relied on private trucking felt that the water was making people sick, compared to 5% in communities reporting other primary water sources
- 38% of sites for internally displaced persons (IDPs) using trucked water reported this as well, compared to 19% of IDP sites using other primary water sources
- Data collected this month also found reported cases of diarrhoea in three-quarters of assessed communities.

# More than a decade of conflict has destroyed critical health services and sanitation infrastructure.

The burden of disease is particularly high as access to healthcare remains weak, due to poverty, lack of funding for health facilities, destroyed facilities, and a lack of health workers. Given that cholera treatment is needed immediately to prevent deaths, widespread lack of access to health services in areas experiencing the outbreak is especially concerning:

• Nearly 90% of assessed communities and 95% of IDP sites reported that health services were unaffordable, followed by 78% and 72% respectively reporting a prohibitively high cost of transportation to health facilities

At least half of all **sewage systems** nationwide are out of order. REACH data also shows that in northeast Syria, 79% of assessed communities reported their location was not connected to a sewage system, increasing the risk of contaminating water and food sources if sewage is not safely managed. The situation was found to be more concerning in IDP sites where displaced households were also lacking latrines – for example, 40% of locations in Deir-ez-Zor reported no available latrines and 44% of sites reported the practice of open defecation within the site as an alternative. Open defecation in particular raises the risk of spreading diarrhoeal diseases like cholera.

## **Further reading**

- Read the full Northeast Syria Cholera Outbreak brief
- Read our more extensive report on the Humanitarian impact of water shortages in Northeast Syria





As an organisation, we believe that only a free, transparent, and open-access to our information products can yield an evidence-based understanding of the crisis we are working on from all stakeholders involved.

To organise your research efficiently, the **REACH Resource Centre** allows you to filter through our reports and fact-sheets depending on which country you want information on. If you are interested in a wider theme within humanitarian responses, we've got you sorted there too.

Topics range from Food Security, Mixed Migration, Humanitarian Situation Monitoring, and much more. The advanced search also allows you to to target your search even further by date, type of crisis, and through keywords.



The REACH Resource Centre has a built-in functionality which enables all **users to subscribe to a mailing alert system**.

### How does it work?

Every user can select exactly what country they are interested in receiving updates on, further narrowing their interests by theme, or even type of information product. Subscribed users will then receive an e-mail directly to their inbox whenever an information product is published in line with their interests.

Access the REACH Resource Centre

**REACH** facilitates the development of information tools and products that enhance the capacity of aid actors to make evidence-based decisions in emergency, recovery and development contexts. All **REACH** activities are conducted through inter-agency aid coordination mechanisms. **REACH** is a joint initiative of **IMPACT**, its sister-organisation **ACTED** and the United Nations Operational Satellite Applications Programme **UNOSAT**.